

Bournemouth School

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Company Registration Number: 07745881 (England and Wales)

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Year ended 31st August 2022

Contents

	Page
Reference and Administrative Details	1-2
Governors' Report:	3-22
Governance Statement	23-29
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance	30
Statement of Governors' Responsibilities	31
Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements	32-35
Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity	36-37
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income & Expenditure Account	38
Consolidated Balance Sheet	39
Academy Balance Sheet	40
Statement of Cash Flows	41
Notes to the Financial Statements, incorporating:	
Statement of Accounting Policies	42-47
Other Notes to the Financial Statements	48-67

Reference and Administrative Details

Governors

Mr Michael Jones * ヌ (Chair)

Dr David Biggins *ズ (appointed 9th November 2021)

Dr Jeffery Bray * ◆ ¾

Mrs Sally Burrows* (resigned 30th August 2022)

Miss Michele Gosling *

Dr Dorian Lewis * (Headteacher and Accounting Officer)

Mrs Cara Lloyd-Hopkins

Mr Will Pyke (appointed 9th November 2021)

Mr Alan Turle Ms Angela Turton *

Dr Catherine Vassallo ◆ 🖈

*Members of the Resources Committee that have finance and

audit oversight responsibility.

Members

Mr Michael Jones Dr Jefferv Brav

Dr David Biggins (appointed 9th November 2021) Mrs Sally Burrows (resigned 30th August 2022)

Miss Michele Gosling (resigned as member 13th September 2022)

Dr Dorian Lewis (Headteacher and Accounting Officer)

(resigned as member 13th September 2022)

Mrs Cara Lloyd-Hopkins (resigned as member 13th September 2022)

Mr Will Pyke (appointed 9th November 2021)

Mrs Jennifer Roche (resigned as member 13th September 2022)

Ms Daphne Skotnicki Mr Anthony Spotswood

Mr Alan Turle Ms Angela Turton Dr Catherine Vassallo

Academy Trust (Company)

Secretary

Not appointed

Key School Personnel

Headteacher*

Deputy Headteacher*
Deputy Headteacher*

Assistant Headteacher*
Assistant Headteacher*

Business Manager*
Finance Manager

*Senior Leadership Team

Dr Dorian Lewis Mr Jamie Anderson Mrs Katherine Ateaque Mrs Rebecca Issott Mrs Clare Wood

Mrs Julie Wheatley Mrs Karen Newton

Reference and Administrative Details

Company Name

Bournemouth School

Principal and Registered Office

East Way Bournemouth Dorset BH8 9PY

Company Registration Number

An exempt Charity

07745881 (England and Wales)

Independent Auditor

Moore (South) LLP

33 The Clarendon Centre

Dairy Meadow Lane

Salisbury Wiltshire SP1 2TJ

Bankers

Lloyds Bank PLC

45-47 Old Christchurch Road

Bournemouth BH1 1ED

Solicitors

StoneKing LLP 13 Queen Street

Bath BA1 2HJ

Governors' Report

The Governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable company and group for the year ended 31 August 2022. The annual report is a trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving Bournemouth and the locality. The school currently has 1,162 pupils on roll, 290 of whom are in the sixth form.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Governors act as the trustees for the charitable activities and are also the directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law. The Academy Trust is known as Bournemouth School.

Details of the Governors who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the Academy Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Governors Indemnities

The Academy Trust has purchased cover through the Department for Education Risk Protection Arrangement which includes Governors Liability (£10,000,000) and Employee and Third Party Dishonesty (£500,000). The cost of these items is not separately identifiable.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Governors

Governors shall be appointed or elected, as the case may be, as set out in the Academy Trust's Articles of Association and Funding Agreement.

The Parent Governors shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy and must be a parent of a pupil at the Academy at the time when they are elected.

The Staff Governors shall be elected by staff members at the Academy.

Governors are appointed for a four-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Headteacher. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Governor, any Governor can be re-appointed or re-elected.

When co-opting new Governors, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing Governors in order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the Academy's development.

Governors' Report

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Governors

Governors undergo an induction and mentoring process. The training and induction provided for new Governors will depend upon their existing experience but would always include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Governors have access to copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Governors. As there are normally only two or three new Governors a year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. The school subscribes to The Key Governor Support, providing all governors with up-to-date online support and guidance. Members of the Governing Body are also allocated on-line training modules to complete as and when appropriate.

Organisational Structure

Bournemouth School has a Governing Body, the composition of which is set out in the Academy's Articles of Association. The Academy has four main Governor Committees: Resources, Audit, Student Experience and Futures to which Governors are appointed. The Academy will also call on members of the Governing Body to sit on a Staff Dismissals Committee and Staff Dismissals Appeal Committee on an *ad hoc* basis should either committee be required. The Governing Body and its Committees have Terms of Reference which are reviewed annually.

The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the Academy and determines membership, terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports including policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees through the minutes of their meetings. The Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

The following decisions are reserved to the Board of Governors:

- to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure
- to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman
- to appoint the Headteacher and Governance Professional
- to approve the School Improvement Plan
- to approve the budget and variations to budget over £25,000
- to authorise expenditure/orders over £25,000 (excluding payroll).

The Trustees and Board of Governors have devolved responsibility for day-to-day management of the Academy to the Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team (SLT). The Scheme of Delegation was last reviewed at the AGM in December 2021. The SLT comprises of those persons listed on page 1. Their roles and responsibilities are reviewed annually by the Governing Body as part of the School Improvement Plan. This was last completed in March 2021. Financial and other authorities are confirmed annually by the Governing Body within the adopted Statement of Roles and Responsibilities. This was last completed on 7 December 2021.

The SLT implement the policies laid down by the Governors and report back to them on performance. Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders which must be authorised in line with the Scheme of Delegation. The Headteacher is responsible for the appointment of staff, though appointment panels for senior teaching posts always include a Governor.

The Headteacher is the Accounting Officer.

Governors' Report

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Pay and remuneration of key management personnel is determined by a number of contributory factors including the pay scales for each role determined by the Governing Body and published in the Pay Policy, the level of experience of the staff member and annual appraisal outcome. Levels of pay may be affected by any nationally agreed pay awards, the ability to recruit key management personnel and their retention in post. All amendments to key management personnel's pay and remuneration is discussed and agreed by the governing body's Pay Committee.

The remuneration policy for the school's senior leaders was last reviewed in December 2018. Governors were mindful that the statutory pay range for members of the leadership group in a maintained school in England (excluding the London area) is published in the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD). Whilst the school, as an academy, is able to set its own pay scales, they felt it appropriate to use the same rationale to determine the pay of those on the leadership scale as we do for other teachers, *i.e.* staying within the recommendations of the STPCD. Governors are aware of a number of academies who have adopted a different approach, especially in respect of the pay for principals and executive principals.

Within the STPCD, a "unit score" determines the headteacher group and pay range. The unit score is determined by the number of pupils at each key stage on the school register. As part of their review, governors considered the number of students currently on the school register and that forecast in the future, and derived a unit score that indicated that the headteacher group should be set as Group 7 (for a unit score of 11,001 to 17,000). Governors were reassured by the headteacher's current remuneration falling within the range recommended for the headteacher of a Group 7 school in the STCPD.

Trade Union Facility Time

There are no trade union officials at the school.

Related Parties and Other Connected Charities and Organisations

At the beginning of the year the Academy joined the South West Academic Trust, a group of grammar schools in the South West, working in association with Exeter University to promote opportunities for staff and pupils to meet together and share best practice.

The Academy is associated with Bournemouth School Charitable Trust (a registered charity and company limited by guarantee) which does not have access to public funds. The Academy contributes £17,146 per annum to Bournemouth School Charitable Trust to secure the future of the Sir David English Sports Centre and associated facilities (to which the school has access).

The Academy is a beneficiary of the Bournemouth School Fund (registered charity 291760). The Academy provides support and administration as required. The School Fund exists for advancing the education of pupils by providing and assisting in the provision of facilities for the education of pupils at the school.

The Academy provides support and administration as required to the Roberts Thomson and Other Scholarships Foundation (registered charity 306304). The charity exists to enable boys of the School and old boys under the age of 25 to pursue their education.

Dr Lewis, a trustee of the Academy, is also a trustee of Bournemouth School Charitable Trust, the Bournemouth School Fund and the Robert Thompson and Other Scholarships Foundation.

Governors' Report

Structure, Governance and Management (continued)

Mrs Burrows, a trustee of the Academy up to 30th August 2022, is also a trustee of the Robert Thompson and Other Scholarships Foundation.

Due to the overall benefit and control the Academy has over the Bournemouth School Fund and the Roberts Thomson and Other Scholarships Foundation these entities have been consolidated with the Academy accounts.

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of Bournemouth School. There are no sponsors associated with the Academy.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Governors have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

Legal framework

The characteristics of the Academy as set down in section 482 (2) of the Education Act 1996, substituted by the Education Act 2002, are that the school: should have a broad curriculum with an emphasis on a particular subject area, or particular subject areas, specified in the Funding Agreement; and, should provide education for able students who are wholly or mainly drawn from the area in which the school is situated.

The Strategic Vision and Principles for Bournemouth School

The purpose of Bournemouth School, as a selective boys' grammar school with a limited number of girls in the sixth form, is to provide an outstanding education enabling all students to take a career path that is fulfilling, exciting and challenging. This will provide them with the skills to make the right development choices when leaving Bournemouth School, from accessing the best universities to apprenticeship such as finance or engineering.

In order to achieve the academic standards desired, the School's leadership will always focus upon developing outstanding teaching and learning.

The school will support extra-curricular activities and other appropriate qualifications to build talent, leadership and confidence.

In order to strengthen and enrich the community of the school all children should have a fair and equal chance to participate in all the activities of the school and should ideally live within the vicinity.

The Governing Body will provide the strategic vision for the school independent of any personal interest and hold the school accountable for the enactment of the vision.

Governors' Report

Objectives and Activities (continued)

Goals

- To ensure that all students realise their academic potential and progress to a rewarding career.
- To enable students from all backgrounds to attend Bournemouth School.
- To enable students through a variety of experiences to develop their talents and capabilities to become future leaders and make a valuable contribution to society.
- To establish the school as one of the leading centres of educational excellence within the region, serving academically gifted students from the locality.
- To secure the school's financial sustainability.
- To secure the school's place within the local community.

Our Context

Bournemouth School is a grammar school for boys (with girls in the sixth form; girls have been admitted since September 2012) serving Bournemouth and the surrounding area. The School's published admission number for Year 7 entry is currently 180 (increased from 150 in 2019). A small number of students also join us in Year 12 from other local schools. The School continues to be oversubscribed (1162 on roll; 290 in the Sixth Form, of whom 30 are girls).

A Selective Schools Expansion Fund bid was successful, formalising our partnership working with other schools and enabling us to plan to extend our existing accommodation. Our new block, comprising classrooms, a new sixth form centre and extended dining facilities is now nearing completion and we hope to occupy the building in January 2023.

In recent years, building improvement works have also been undertaken following successful bids to the *Condition Improvement Fund*. In the last academic year, work was undertaken to improve site security and accessibility. We have recently secured a grant of £3.2m to replace the School's heating system and domestic hot water supply. These works are due to start by the end of the autumn term.

To ensure that high ability students from all backgrounds are able to access selective education and that disadvantaged children are not held back due to financial or other barriers, there have been significant changes made to the School's Admissions Policy over the last 7 years. Priority is now given to boys eligible for the Pupil Premium Grant who have met the required standard in the entrance tests. The School has also determined a "priority area" to ensure that it provides education for students who are mainly drawn from the area in which the School is situated. The priority area includes all of the historic borough of Bournemouth and part of Christchurch.

Despite these changes to the Admissions Policy, the proportion of students known to be eligible for free school meals (FSM) remains low (5.9% in October 2022) compared to that nationally, as is the proportion of disabled students and those with special educational needs (4.2% SEND Support; 0.5% EHCP). The School continues to work towards giving better access to pupils on FSMs with the aim that numbers should better match the catchment area average. Around 23% of students are from minority ethnic groups, with 3.5% having a first language not believed to be English. The School benefits from having a stable roll and serves an area with, on average, low deprivation.

The percentage of persistent absentees over the last three years, and the percentage of sessions missed due to overall absence have been consistently below the national average for secondary schools, and with the median for schools with a comparable proportion of students eligible for

Governors' Report

Objectives and Activities (continued)

FSM. Attendance rates have yet to return to their pre-pandemic levels. Historically both suspensions and permanent exclusions have been significantly lower than the national average.

Bournemouth School is one of very few maintained schools in the United Kingdom that has a Combined Cadet Force (CCF). Membership of our CCF is also offered to girls from Bournemouth School for Girls (BSG). The School also has a Royal Navy accredited Sea-Scout Group, and is a Duke of Edinburgh (DofE) Award Directly Licensed Centre. Before the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic we offered students an extensive extra-curricular provision (sport, music, drama, theatre club, etc.), and this provision is now gradually returning to normal. A number of students attend off-site provision to support their sporting excellence.

The School is not part of a Multi-Academy Trust and has no religious affiliations, but enjoys close links with many local schools and all of the main faith communities in the Bournemouth area. There is an extensive assembly programme, including House and year group assemblies that afford the opportunity to consider spiritual, moral, social and cultural development and to reinforce the School's ethos.

The School does not enter students early for GCSE examinations. Students joining the sixth form are expected to follow three or four two-year A-level courses. A comprehensive offer, including the Pre-U, Core Maths, the Crest Gold Award, sport, volunteering and work experience enrich students' sixth form experience. The programme for each individual student is agreed with their tutor at the beginning of Year 12 to ensure that they make the most of the opportunities that are available to them and are well prepared for the next stage of their education or to enter the workplace. For 2022-23 we have increased the number of periods devoted to the study of a given subject by the inclusion of an additional two supervised study periods.

As part of our recent, successful bid to the Selective Schools Expansion Fund we reaffirmed our commitment to working with local non-selective secondary schools and primary schools to raise aspirations, particularly for those students from disadvantaged backgrounds. We already enable students from a number of local primary schools to access our specialist facilities, equipment, and expertise. We believe that competition between schools does not prevent collaboration, especially as we share the moral purpose to ensure that all children, irrespective of background, earlier experience or status, achieve their best. We want to ensure that the most academically gifted children get support to fulfil their potential regardless of their circumstances (or indeed whichever primary or secondary school they attend). We have recently joined a local School Improvement Network, coordinated by the Two Rivers Institute, and continue to be part of the South West Academic Trust.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Details of the main objectives for the year and the strategies for achieving them are included in the Strategic Report below.

Public Benefit

The Governors confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties and in setting our objectives and planning our activities. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future activities.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report

The school is oversubscribed, has excellent GCSE and A-level outcomes and its finances are in good health. The Senior Leadership team are an excellent and committed team, staff turnover is low and construction of our new block, comprising extended dining facilities and a new sixth form centre will be completed by January 2023 allowing us to meet demand for places at the school.

Achievements and Performance

Summary of current position

- The School continues to be oversubscribed (1162 on roll; 290 in the Sixth Form, of whom 30 are girls).
- Construction of the new block started in July 2021, with it due to open for January 2023. We
 have endeavoured to ensure that the provision for students is not significantly affected by the
 building works, but some disruption is inevitable.
- Annual building improvement works have been undertaken following successful bids to the
 Condition Improvement Fund We have recently secured a grant of £3.2m to replace the
 School's heating system and domestic hot water supply. These works are due to start by the
 end of the autumn term.
- The number of students registering to sit entrance tests to become eligible at the school continues to significantly exceed the number of places available.

Outcomes at GCSE (2022)

- A8 was 72.2 (72.9 in 2018; 71.9 in 2019)
- P8 was 0.38 (0.59 in 2018; 0.47 in 2019)
- The proportion of students achieving a strong pass in English and mathematics was 96% (97% in 2019)
- For the 11 disadvantaged students in the 2022 cohort, the P8 score was -0.71, with an average GCSE points score of 5.4 compared to 6.7 for all students (in 2019 the P8 score for disadvantaged students was 0.31, with all achieving a strong pass in English and mathematics)
- 71% of the cohort were entered for the English Baccalaureate (88% in 2019), with 62% (73% in 2019) achieving a strong pass (EBacc APS of 6.5 in 2019; 6.7 in 2022)

Outcomes at A-level (2022)

- APS was 42.2 (39.6 in 2018; 42.4 in 2019)
- The proportion of students achieving 3 A levels at grades AAB or high with 2 facilitating subjects was 36% (36% in 2018; 42% in 2019)
- VA score in 2019 was +0.22 (+0.04 in 2018)

The school's trustees and leaders are relentless and uncompromising in their pursuit of excellence, striving to continually improve the already high levels of academic achievement, and ensuring that the education that the school provides has a positive impact on all its students; they have high expectations of all students. School leaders have an accurate understanding of the school's strengths, and identify where improvements are needed. Any identified shortcomings are addressed with determination. There is a strong focus on continually improving teaching and learning and to provide all staff with good training to enhance their professional effectiveness in delivering the curriculum and increase the School's capacity to bring about further improvement. Arrangements for the appraisal of staff are rigorous and have positive impact on students' achievements. Leaders always take into account the workload and well-being of staff, while also developing and strengthening the quality of the workforce and provision.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Leadership is distributed effectively, with middle leaders playing an increasingly significant role in ensuring the quality of our provision and determining and leading areas for improvement. Colleagues at all levels are encouraged to progress their careers, with the appraisal process used to identify appropriate support and development opportunities. Teaching and learning is at the heart of teachers' professional development with school, departmental and individual targets aligned and centred on the development of the 4 pillars: *Curriculum Intent, Developing Deep Understanding, Appropriate Stretch and Challenge*, and *Culture of Learning*.

The School has in place structures to ensure that its work is evaluated at all levels, and that plans are implemented to consolidate success and secure further improvement. Challenging, yet realistic, targets are set for individual students, groups of students, teachers and subject areas. Clear lines of responsibility and monitoring exist to ensure that targets are met and that any required intervention is timely. The analysis of assessment data and systematic lesson observations are used to identify areas of concern, with targeted observations used to tackle the areas of underperformance. Improving line management, targeted support for underperforming staff, and the effective application of the appraisal policy have been instrumental in raising the quality of teaching. The school's self-evaluation is further enhanced by an accountability framework, a key feature of which are Deep Dives into subject areas.

The quality of leadership and management at all levels across all areas of the School's work is constantly improving, with leaders sharing a vision that creates coherence and consistency across the School so that all students benefit from effective teaching and consistent expectations in all year groups and across all subjects. Continued professional development activities are embedded in subject area improvement plans and are focused upon improving teachers' subject-specific pedagogical knowledge.

The School has a culture of safeguarding and has taken account of, and implemented, the recommendations in the DfE Guidance 'Keeping Children Safe in Education' (2022). The designated safeguarding lead provides support to staff members to carry out their safeguarding duties and liaises closely with other services such as children's social care. Other staff are appropriately trained (annual on-line Level 2 training from an accredited provider), with frequent updates in whole staff meetings. A specific member of the Governing Body has oversight of this area, and meets on termly basis with the designated safeguarding lead.

The school has a clear an effective plan for the teaching of the personal development curriculum, including meeting the statutory requirements on relationships education, relationships and sex education and health education. The school is an inclusive community that does not tolerate any form of discrimination or abuse based on any of the protected characteristics.

Although historically the numbers of LAC, PP and SEN students has been relatively small, structures and procedures are in place to ensure that all are able to access a rich curriculum and are given tailored support to ensure that each individual's potential is realised. The way in which any additional funding is used is carefully evaluated, with its impact reported to the governing body annually.

The experienced and knowledgeable governing body effectively undertakes its statutory duties for example under the Equality Act 2010, and in relation to safeguarding and the "Prevent" duty. Governors are highly supportive of the headmaster and all his staff, but they are highly resolute in holding leaders to account. Governors act to improve their knowledge and understanding through actively engaging in training and spending an increasing amount of time in school. They ensure that the school has a clear vision and strategy, and that resources are managed well.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

The School's finances are well-managed, ensuring that funding is spent wisely and contribute to improving student outcomes. Staffing and resources are deployed efficiently to the benefit of all groups of students. The implementation of the School's Financial Management Handbook, enables it to maintain and develop systems of financial control which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. The handbook is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to ensure its contents are as up to date and accurate as possible, and it adheres to the latest financial standard for academies. The audited financial statements (annual accounts) are published by 31 December each year (relating to the period ending 31 August). All aspects of the school's financial management are scrutinised by the Governing Body's Audit Committee and external auditors (Moore (South) LLP). The school is fully compliant with the Schools' Financial Values Standards.

Improvement Planning

Improvements since the last inspection

In the School's last Ofsted report (September 2011) inspectors advised the school to ensure that all lessons are good or better by:

- developing more rigorous monitoring of teaching and learning;
- eliminating any remaining inconsistencies in the quality of teaching and marking of students' work;
- ensuring all lessons fully engage students and proceed at a good pace.

It was recognised that improvement plans were clear and relevant and had a strong focus on tackling weaknesses in teaching. At the time, it was considered that these initiatives were at an early stage and had had only a limited impact on learning. It was also noted that the way leaders and managers monitor teaching and learning varied, and, in the case of middle managers, sometimes lacked rigour.

Since the last inspection, line management has become more rigorous through developing shared schedules for monitoring and evaluation (for members of the senior team, and for pastoral and subject leaders). Our accountability framework ensures that targets are being met and consistency between subject areas and houses/year groups. Revisions to the Appraisal and Capability Policy (since 2012) have made more explicit the relationship between the School Improvement Plan and the responsibilities of individual teachers. The monitoring and evaluation schedules and the appraisal process are supplemented with an on-going analysis of assessment data to identify areas for development and prompt early intervention, a comprehensive schedule of lesson observations and work scrutinies, and progress meetings. Teaching staff have undertaken a number of professional development activities, most recently focused upon stretching the most able, improving students' levels of literacy and ensuring that marking and feedback enables students to effect improvement.

The determination of the school's leaders to effect continuous improvement in all aspects of our provision has resulted in greater consistency in the quality teaching observed and consequently improved outcomes for students since the last inspection.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Overall Effectiveness and Areas for Development

Strengths

- Student outcomes (results at GCSE and A-level, destinations, participation in extracurricular activities, development of leadership skills, and physical and mental wellbeing)
- Challenging breadth and depth of curriculum at all key stages
- Extensive range of extra-curricular opportunities
- Support for students across all year groups (pastoral and academic)
- The House System to enhance the sense of community and raise the profile of charitable works
- Student leadership (particularly in the sixth form and through the House System)
- Teachers' subject knowledge and professionalism

School improvement priority areas 2022-2026

School improvement priorities

- Teaching and Learning
- · Staff well-being and professional development
- · Student well-being and personal development
- Partnership working with other schools and ensuring fair access
- · Improving our facilities and infrastructure

Whole School Improvement Plan Priorities 2022/23

Priority 1 Objectives

Teaching and Learning

- Complete the curriculum review (started in 2021-22)
- Ensure our provision meets the needs of disadvantaged students, using additional funding to best effect
- Improve student attainment and progress in English
- Improve provision in modern foreign languages to more closely meet the need of our students
- Revise the quality assurance cycle for the evaluation of teaching and learning to support the Pillars across all subject areas

Through subject area improvement plans and the CPD provision, the following aspects of our "Pillars of Educational Excellence" will be focused upon:

Pillar two: Developing Deep Understanding

- Supporting students to evaluate their learning
- Explicit teaching of revision techniques and study skills
- Effective use of assessment and feedback to develop self-regulated learners
- Engaging, motivating, inspiring experience beyond 'servicing the Curriculum'

Pillar three: Appropriate Stretch and Challenge

- Considered use of planned modelling and scaffolding
- Tailored learning experience

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Priority 2

Staff Well-Being and Professional Development

Objectives

- The current situation is audited and research undertaken to establish what good mental health and well-being would look like at our school
- Priorities are established and a staff well-being policy and action plan are developed (formalising ways for leaders to engage with staff and effect improvements in work-life balance)
- All staff are consulted on proposed policy and action plan, both are revised for implementation in 2023-24
- Continue to develop and implement a strategy to ensure the continued professional development of all staff over the next 2-5 years, using a variety of approaches (internal/external, and face-to-face/on-line)
- Engage with the School Improvement Network, SWAT and The National College to offer further opportunities for staff development
- Develop and implement the revised system of appraisal to support colleagues' professional development
- Achieve greater consistency amongst the tutor teams, particularly in the delivery of the PSHCE programme through professional development activities led by Heads of Year

Priority 3

Student Well-Being and Personal Development

Objectives

- Review the experience of female students to understand how we can improve the culture of Bournemouth School to minimise the potential for sexual harassment, abuse and violence
- Re-establish a coherent programme of extra-curricular trips and visits, post-pandemic
- Further involve the School Council in reviewing and improving policies and practice
- Work with Careers Hub/CEC/ Hampshire Futures to improve scores in components 1 and 4 of the Gatsby Benchmarks (Pillar 2), introducing the use of Unifrog to enable progress towards achieving the benchmarks to be monitored
- Improve Sixth Form students' time management and study skills through the tutor programme
- Ensure that catch up funding and the Pupil Premium Grant supports the progress of vulnerable learners to best effect
- Re introduce quality assurance processes to evaluate practice in securing student well-being

Priority 4

Partnership working with other schools and ensuring fair access

Objectives

- Partnerships with a non-selective secondary school and primary schools are fostered working alongside Bournemouth School for Girls
- The primary to secondary transition process is developed further
- Sixth form students and staff offer mentoring and support in key skills (e.g. literacy and numeracy) to pupils identified by the primary partners
- Strategies are in place to support disadvantaged students to realise their potential in our entrance tests
- A "Partnership Raising Achievement Plan" for 2023-24 is established alongside Bournemouth School for Girls
- Continue to progress work with prospective MAT partners

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Priority 5 Improving our facilities and infrastructure Objectives

- The Selective Schools Expansion Fund building project is completed and within budget
- The Condition Improvement Fund project to improve site security and accessibility is completed
- The full implementation plan for the Condition Improvement Fund project to replace the heating and domestic hot water systems is in place, with work being undertaken according to the agreed schedule
- Planned improvements to the IT infrastructure are completed, with a working party established to develop a strategy for effective use of IT to improve teaching and learning
- Priorities for further improvements to our accommodation are established
- · Further funding is sought and secured to address improvement priorities

School Infrastructure Improvements

Improvements in the quality of our provision are also affected by changes to the school's infrastructure. In the 2021/22 financial year, we undertook a number of projects, which are detailed below.

- Continuation of building of the new classroom block and dining facilities. Work commenced in July 2021 (Selective Schools' Expansion Fund)
- New perimeter fencing to secure the school site
- New reception entrance to improve the security of the school
- New entrance ramp to improve accessibility to the school
- Improvements to the ICT network to improve access speeds

Other Key Performance Indicators

The main financial performance indicator is the level of general reserves held at the Balance Sheet date. In the period under review £1,742,535 restricted general reserves (of which £1,491,322 relates to funds set aside for building works) were carried forward representing 27.0% of incoming resources of restricted general funds.

As funding is based on pupil numbers this is a key performance indicator. Pupil numbers for 2022 (School Census Autumn 2022) were 1163, compared to 1169 for 2021 (School Census Autumn 2021). The difference in numbers was as a result of the increase in the published admission number from 150 to 180 in 2019/20 and a reduction in the number of sixth form students.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Another key financial performance indicator is staffing costs as a percentage of General Annual Grant (GAG). Key ratios are shown below:

Staffing Costs as a % of Public/GAG income

%	2021/22	2020/21
Teaching & Educational Support Staff	77.6%	81.0%
Support Staff (excluding LGPS pension costs)	10.7%	10.5%
Catering Staff	2.1%	2.2%

The decrease in the teaching & educational support staff cost as a % of public/GAG income is mainly due to increases in the per pupil funding the school is now receiving as a result of the partial introduction of the national funding formula.

Admissions for Year 7 Main School Entry (including results from Appeals)

20	22	202	21
Applications Allocated		Applications	Allocated
366	178	463	182

Going Concern

The pupil numbers at the academy have increased in 2022/23 following a planned increase in PAN in 2019/20. Applications to the school for entrance continue to be high and it is therefore assumed that pupil numbers will remain at our post 2019 capacity of 180 per year group.

Unrestricted general funds are showing a deficit for the year ended 31st August 2022. This is mainly in relation to catering costs exceeding revenue where sales have not gone back to pre Covid levels. With the opening of the new catering facilities in 2022/23 an increased focus will be given to the school catering facilities with the anticipation of increased sales. The reserve levels held by the academy trust remain at a level considered to be acceptable by the governors for the continued operations of the academy.

Investment is being made in the academy through CIF and SSEF grants to improve the quality of the infrastructure and provide accommodation for the future planned increase in pupil numbers.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Governing Body has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Financial Review

The principal source of income is grants from the Department for Education (DfE) via the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and these are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defined in the Academy's accounting policies.

A breakdown of grant income received by the Academy is provided in note 4 to the Financial Statements

Two charities are under common control and are consolidated within the financial statements of the Academy - the Bournemouth School Fund and Robert Thomson and Others Scholarships Foundation. Both made small surpluses in the year, and have a total of £353,322 of reserves at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £353,309).

The change in the balance of restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds during the year was £3,403,106.

	2022 £	2021 £
Net income/(expenditure)- see page 38	3,070,106	105,826
Deduct capital grant income included	(3,231,305)	(168,715)
Add back depreciation & loss on disposal of assets	328,306	321,130
Add back/(deduct) (loss)/gain on investments	6,391	(20,831)
Add back cost of pension scheme	333,000	260,000
Adjusted net income surplus for the year	506,498	497,410
Breakdown of income surplus	507 242	EE4 4EE
Surplus on restricted funds (Government Funded)	507,313	551,155
(Loss)/Surplus on unrestricted funds (trips/unofficial/charities)	(815)	(53,745)
	506,498	497,410

The increase in net income surplus mainly relates to:

· accrued capital income in respect of the capital improvement fund bid for heating

The school received a formula capital grant from the ESFA of £25,080. This income stream is shown in the restricted fixed asset funds. Additional capital grant income was also receivable in the year of:

£3,206,225 relating to a capital improvement fund grant for improving heating.

Expenditure by the group totalled £7,051,943 in the year (2021 - £6,314,501). A breakdown of this expenditure is included in note 8 to the financial statements.

£3,089,742 unspent capital income was been brought forward into the 2021/22 year. This has been spent during the year, mainly on the new building. Unspent capital grants of £3,080,126 are being carried forward into the 2022/23 year, mainly in relation to the capital improvement fund bid for heating. Additions to fixed assets of £3,759,075 were made in the year less depreciation and a small loss on disposal of £262 leading to an increase in the fixed asset fund of £3,421,153.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

This increase in the fixed asset fund of £3,421,153 together with a small loss £(15,935) for the year (excluding pension fund costs and actuarial losses) has resulted in the increase in restricted general funds of £3,405,218. The deficit in the current year has mainly been as a result of reserves being used to fund capital projects.

The deficit on the Pension reserve is dealt with in Reserves below and in note 29 to the Financial Statements.

COVID 19

The effects of Covid 19 have been much reduced in the 2021/22 year. There has been an increased spend on tutoring and a targeted approach to catch students up after Covid which has been funded by government grants (see below). The main income that has not fully recovered after Covid is catering income. It is intended that the catering function will be re-launched with the opening of the new dining facilities when the new build is complete.

Income from other trading activities was £374,070 and income from donations was £65,306. Income from other trading activities was higher than in the prior year due to a more normal year after Covid seeing the running of after school activities, music lessons and catering returning to full operation.

Income specific to Covid 19 was received during the year. £65,600 was received as a Covid 19 catch-up premium in 2020/21 and was brought forward into 2021/22 to help students catch-up from the effects of Covid 19 on their education. £11,680 was received and spent to fund the mass testing required at the school during 2021/22 and £2,582 was received and spent to fund additional tutoring for students. A recovery premium grant of £8,338 was received and spent to support disadvantaged pupils.

Financial outlook

The 2022/23 Academy budget currently shows a small surplus.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Academy has agreed a Risk Management Strategy, Risk Register and a Risk Management Plan. These have been discussed by the Governors and include the financial risks to the Academy. The register and plan are constantly reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed annually.

The Governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to its finances, compliance and operational areas. The Governors have implemented systems to assess and minimise those risks, including internal controls described elsewhere. The Academy has ensured that they have adequate levels of insurance or risk protection arrangement cover which meet the guidance issued by the ESFA.

The Governors examine the financial health of the Academy Trust on a regular basis, reviewing performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of monthly update reports and reporting at all full Governors' and Audit Committee meetings. The Finance Manager and Headteacher also regularly review cash flow forecasts and ensure sufficient funds are held to cover all known and anticipated commitments.

At the year end, the Academy had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors where there would be a significant effect on liquidity.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

The Governing Body recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit (Local Government Pension Scheme), which is set out in Note 29 to the financial statements, represents a significant potential liability. However, any risk arising from this liability is considered to be low as the Governors consider that the Academy is able to meet its known annual contribution commitments for the foreseeable future. This risk is further minimised given that, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, a guarantee has been given that, in the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding local government pension scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. This guarantee came into force on 18th July 2013.

Reserves Policy

The Academy plans its expenditure so that grant funding should be expended each year to support the delivery of education provision to its students. However, the Academy has been planning for expansion and significant improvement works (which are now in construction) and this has necessitated the accumulation of reserves:

	Restricted	Unrestricted	Total
Fixed asset fund	20,717,665	-	20,717,665
Pension reserve	(954,000)	-	(954,000)
Site improvements	1,491,322	-	1,491,322
Unallocated general reserves	251,213	15,450	266,663
Total - School	21,506,200	15,450	21,521,650
School Fund		177,062	177,062
Roberts Thomson Fund	-	176,260	176,260
Total - Consolidated	21,506,200	368,772	21,874,972

The Academy's current level of consolidated reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted pension funds) is £2,111,307 (£1,742,535 in General funds, of which £1,491,322 relates to funds set aside for building works, and £368,772 in Unrestricted funds).

Fixed asset fund

The current level of the restricted fixed asset fund is £20,717,665 which includes £3,080,126 of carried forward grant income. This fund can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets, which are primarily the land and building from which the school operates.

Pension reserve

The Academy has inherited the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme, in respect of its non-teaching staff. The deficit is incorporated within the Statement of Financial Activities with details in Note 29 to the financial statements (see Balance Sheet, Pension Scheme £954,000 deficit). The existence of the pension scheme deficit does not mean an immediate liability crystallises and is addressed over a series of years through pension contributions recommended by the pension scheme actuaries during subsequent triennial valuations of the scheme.

The Governors acknowledge that the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) represents a significant pension fund deficit. As this figure is included within restricted funds it represents a potential deficit on these funds and, should this occur, the disclosure does not mean that an immediate liability for this amount crystallises. The deficit position of the pension scheme would generally result in a cash flow effect for the Academy Trust in the form of an increase in employers' pension contributions over a period of years. Increased pension contributions will generally be met from the Academy Trust's budgeted annual income. Whilst the deficit might not be eliminated, there should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund, or direct impact on the free reserves of the academy trust because of recognising the deficit.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Site improvements

The school is committing £1,491,322 for site improvements over and above its annual maintenance expenditure. These funds will be used with the funds from the Selective Schools Expansion Fund and Condition Improvement Fund bids to improve and update the buildings that the Academy occupies.

Unallocated general reserves

The Governors believe that the main financial risk to the academy is that of managing its short-term cash flow effectively. To mitigate this risk it has been agreed that a desirable reserves balance would equate to approximately £350,000. This is sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance.

There is currently a shortfall of £83,315 of unallocated general reserve to the target balance of £350,000. However, the Academy balance sheet also includes £177,062 which related to the School Fund and £176,260 which relates to Roberts Thomson and Other Scholarship Foundation. It is felt that on balance the level of unallocated general reserve is acceptable.

Review of levels of reserves

The Governors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves and takes the future plans of the Academy into consideration.

Investment Policy

A small number of investments are held in the Roberts Thomson & Others Scholarship Foundation Trust which is consolidated into the these accounts. These investments are held in COIF (Charities Investment Fund Income Units) Charity Funds.

The Articles of Association list the powers that the Academy Trust has with regards to investments. The current economic conditions necessarily mean that investment returns from the types of account available are limited in scope. Nevertheless, the Resources Committee reviews this matter at its termly meetings to ensure that returns are maximised within prudent parameters. The Governors will develop a more sophisticated Investment Policy as and when required.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial – the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the last year, 96% of the Academy's incoming resources were ultimately Government funded and, whilst this level is expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

Failures in governance and/or management – the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively manage the Academy's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns, etc. The Governors continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.

Governors' Report

Strategic Report (continued)

Reputational – the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk the Governors ensure that student success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Safeguarding and child protection – the Governors continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health and safety and discipline.

Staffing – the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff and so the Governors monitor and review policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear succession planning.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds – the monitoring of the financial systems and records is carried out by the Audit Committee and internal and external audit in order to manage this risk.

As reported within the Risk Management Statement earlier in this Report, the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, as identified by the Governors, the Senior Leadership Team and others, have been reviewed, and systems or procedures have been established to manage those risks. Internal control systems and the exposure to risks are considered on a regular basis by the Governors and the Academy Leadership Team at their routine meetings. The Risk Register was reviewed by Governors in June 2022, and will be further reviewed in the autumn term.

Fundraising

The Academy Trust as an individual entity does not carry out any fundraising activities.

The Bournemouth School Fund which is a related charity and is consolidated into these accounts sends out a request to all new students for a monthly donation amount. There is no obligation to make a monthly contribution and this is clearly stated in the documentation sent out by the School.

Any voluntary contributions made by parents to support the delivery of extra-curricular activities (such as trips and visits) are used for their intended purpose. There were no fundraising complaints during 2021/22.

Plans for Future Periods

Bournemouth School will continue to strive to provide outstanding education and improve the levels of performance of its pupils at all levels. The Academy will continue to aim to attract high quality teachers and support staff in order to develop its objectives.

Development of teaching and learning and raising of standards will be pursued in accordance with the targets set within the School Improvement Plan, produced by the Senior Leadership Team in consultation with Governing Body Committees, and that has been adopted by Governors.

The improvement of school facilities will continue to be pursued. The current SSEF bid to provide increased accommodation for a larger number of pupils and the new CIF bid to improve heating will help to improve the overall site infrastructure over the forthcoming years.

Governors' Report

Plans for Future Periods (continued)

Contingency planning

The School has in place an Emergency Plan. The purpose of the plan is to minimise the impact of crises on students, parents/carers, governors and our community in the event of an emergency. It aims to deal with the school's response to all forms of emergency and critical incidents. Potential critical incidents include:

- death of any member of the school community
- violence and assault caused by an internal or external agency
- intentional destruction or vandalism of part of the site
- hostage taking of any member of the school community
- road, sea or air traffic accident involving any member of the community
- natural disaster in the school, immediate or national community
- death or injuries on school journeys
- civil disturbances and terrorism
- fire or bomb threat
- bad/inclement weather

In addition, our School leaders understand the nature of the threat and the potential for ransomware to cause considerable damage to the School in terms of lost data (including evidence required to support teacher assessed grades should they be required) and access to critical services.

The School will follow The Department for Education and National Crime Agency's recommendations not to pay any ransom demands, as such payments offer no guarantee of restoring access or services and will likely result in repeat incidents to educational settings. Our existing defences have been recently reviewed and the necessary steps to protect our networks from cyber-attacks have been taken. We have the ability to restore the systems and recover data from backups, which are held offline.

Through the developing use of MS Teams, we have in place remote education plans for individuals or groups of self-isolating students. In the event of a local outbreak, the PHE health protection team or local authority may advise a school or number of schools to close temporarily to help control transmission. If this were to be the case, we may return to remaining open only for vulnerable children and the children of critical workers, and providing remote education for all other pupils.

Where a class, group or small number of pupils need to self-isolate, or there is a local lockdown requiring pupils to remain at home, we now have the capacity to offer immediate remote education through MS Teams. We are continuing to improve the quality of our existing offer and develop a stronger contingency plan for remote education provision.

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

The Academy and its Governors does not act as a Custodian Trustee for any other Charity.

Governors' Report

Auditor

In so far as the Governors are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware;
 and
- the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Re-appointment of Auditors

A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for the reappointment of Moore (South) LLP as Auditor of the Academy Trust.

The Governors' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the members of the Governing Body, as the company directors, on 6 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr Michael Jones

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust

6 December 2022

Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Bournemouth School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Governors, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Bournemouth School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the Statement of Governors' Responsibilities.

Bournemouth School has a Governing Body, the composition of which is set out in the Academy's Articles of Association. The Academy has four main Governor Committees: Resources, Audit, Student Experience and Futures to which Governors are appointed. The Academy will also call on members of the Governing Body to sit on a Staff Dismissals Committee and Staff Dismissals Appeal Committee on an ad hoc basis should either committee be required. The Governing Body and its Committees have Terms of Reference which are reviewed annually and contain details of meeting dates, compositions, responsibilities, delegated authorities and matters reserved for the Governing Body itself.

The Governing Body has formally met 4 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the governing body was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Mr M Jones (Chair)	4	4
Mrs S Burrows (Vice Chair)	4	4
Dr D Biggins	2	3
Dr J Bray	4	4
Miss M Gosling	2	4
Dr D Lewis	4	4
Mrs C Lloyd-Hopkins	3	4
Mr W Pyke	3	3
Mrs J Roche	4	4
Ms D Skotnicki	4	4
Mr T Spotswood	3	4
Mr A Turle	3	4
Ms K Turton	3	4
Dr C M Vassallo	4	4

During the 2021/22 academic year, Mr David Biggins and Mr Will Pyke were appointed as governors and Mrs Sally Burrows resigned as a governor.

Governance Statement (continued)

The full board meet four times per academic year. These meetings are supplemented with committee meetings with delegated areas of responsibility. Effective financial oversight is further facilitated by the provision of monthly management account accessible to all board members through MS teams.

To manage any potential conflicts of interest, the academy maintains an up-to-date and complete register of interests. The academy actively avoids engaging in activities or purchases that may give rise to conflicts of interest.

The objectives of the main charity and the connected charities are well aligned, resulting in there being no conflicts of interest to date (all exist to serve the interests of our students). Should there be a conflict of interest at any time in the future, those representing the connected charity would be excluded from the decision-making process for the main charity.

The Governing Body reviews the balance of skills of the Governors as a whole and across all the Committees on an annual basis. A review of attendance and contribution of each member is also undertaken. The last review was carried out Summer Term 2022.

The governing body engages the services of a school improvement partner (through the local School Improvement Network) to provide external moderation of the quality and effectiveness of school leadership and governance. Each visit is documented and reported at a governing body meeting. Any consequent actions required are incorporated into the school improvement plan. The most recent review, informed by the skills audit, indicated that the academy should endeavour to add to its board two additional members with experience in finance and IT or marketing.

The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body. Its main functions are to consider and monitor the staffing establishment and staff appointment procedures, the condition of the school, health and safety and security policies and relevant sections of the school self-evaluation form.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Dr D Biggins	3	3
Dr J Bray	3	3
Mrs S Burrows	2	3
Miss M Gosling	3	3
Mr M Jones	3	3
Dr D Lewis	3	3
Ms A Turton	3	3
Mr T Spotswood (Chair)	2	3

The Audit Committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its main purpose is to review the effectiveness of financial controls and financial risk management. Also, to liaise with the internal and external auditors and to monitor the financial management within the Academy.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
Mr M Jones (Chair to 14 th Dec 21)	2	2
Dr D Biggins	1	2
Dr J Bray (Chair from 15th Dec 21)	1	1
Mr T Spotswood	1	2
Dr M Vassallo	1	2

Details of attendance at other governor meetings can be found on the school's website.

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

- continuing to recruit and deploy staff effectively. We have benchmarked our staffing costs
 with that of other similar schools and have ensured that the proportion of grant income used
 for staff salaries has not increased substantially;
- ensuring that adequate resources have been allocated to routine maintenance enhancing the environment for all members of the community and extending the longevity of the accommodation.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place at Bournemouth School for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Governing Body has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed to together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Governing Body is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Governing Body.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Governing Body;
- regular reviews by the Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
- delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and,
- identification and management of risks.

Governance Statement (continued)

The Governing Body considered the need for a specific internal audit function and appointed Kreston Reeves LLP as internal auditor for the year to 31 August 2022. The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

- review of governance
- review of fixed assets, purchases, income, accounting systems
- review of payroll, website disclosures and an update review on governance and safeguarding

The internal auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the Audit Committee, on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibilities. An annual summary report is prepared for the Governors outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

The internal auditor has carried out a review in several areas, as listed above, during the 2021/22 year.

No material control issues as a result of the internal auditor's work have been identified. Any issues arising have been discussed within the Senior Leadership team to ensure that they are addressed. Such issues have been monitored by Governors, through the Audit Committee, with supporting evidence of delivery as may be required.

Governance

Audit area	Controls exist and operate in practice	Efficiency and effectiveness	Audit opinion	Number of recommendations and reference		s and				
Governance -	Yes	Yes	Substantial assurance	High	-	-				
Compliance				Medium	-	-				
				Low	1	4.1.1				
				Advisory	-	_				
Members and	Yes	Yes	Substantial assurance	High	-	-				
Trustees						:		Medium	-	-
					Low	1	4.2.1			
				Advisory	1	4.2.2				
Related party	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	_				
transactions				Medium	-	-				
				Low	-	_				
				Advisory	-	<u> </u>				
Whistleblowing	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	_				
				Medium	† -	-				
				Low	-	_				
				Advisory	-	-				

Governance Statement (continued)

Risk	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	-
management				Medium	-	-
				Low	-	-
				Advisory	1	4.5.1
Governance - Other	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	-
Other				Medium	-	-
				Low	-	-
				Advisory	-	-

4.1.1 Low – Dear Accounting Officer Letters Response

We accept the recommendation that board minutes should evidence the fact that 'Dear Accounting Officer' letters have been shared and discussed with the Board and will ensure that all governors have sight of the letter and record its receipt and distribution in future meetings of the governing body.

4.2.1 Low - Employees as Members Response

The academy trust accepts the recommendation that members must not be employees of the trust. It was agreed at the full governors meeting on 13 September 2022 that any employees who are governors will "step down" from being members and will be removed from Companies House as of this date. Furthermore, it was proposed to amend the Articles of Association to reflect this change.

4.2.2 Best Practice - Members and Trustees Response

The academy trust will consider changes to its articles in light of the recommendation that there should be significant separation between the individuals who are members and those who are trustees. This particular issue was raised with our solicitors in 2019. At that time the DfE, despite the distinction between members and trustees being strongly preferred, did not require the change in our articles to be made. As a single academy trust considering the prospect of becoming part of a multi academy trust, we are reluctant to renew our articles at this time.

4.5.1 Advisory/Best Practice - Fraud policy and reporting Response

The trust accept the recommendation that Fraud and Irregularity policy for the trust should be enhanced by stating that the ESFA must be notified where frauds with a value exceeding £5,000 are identified and will review our policy accordingly.

Fixed Assets, Purchases, Income, Accounting Systems

Audit area	Controls exist and operate in practice	Efficiency and effectiveness	Audit opinion	Number of recommendations and reference		
Fixed Assets	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	-
				Medium	-	-
				Low	-	-
				Advisory	-	-

Governance Statement (continued)

Purchases	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	-
			(but limited sample tested)	Medium	-	-
				Low	- 1	-
				Advisory	-	-
Income	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	-
				Medium	-	-
				Low	_	-
				Advisory		-
Accounting	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	_
Systems				Medium	-	-
			l)	Low	-	
				Advisory	-	-

Payroll, Website Disclosures, Governance update, Safeguarding update

Audit area	Controls exist and operate in practice	Efficiency and effectiveness	Audit opinion	Number of recommendations and reference		
Payroll	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	
				Medium	-	
				Low	-	
				Advisory	-	-
Governance – website compliance	Yes	Yes	Full assurance	High	-	
				Medium	-	-
				Low	-	
				Advisory	-	
Safeguarding – follow up	Yes	Yes	Substantial assurance	High	-	
				Medium	_	
				Low	-	
				Advisory	1	4.4.1
				Resolved		4.4.1
						4.4.2

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal auditor;
- the work of the external auditor;
- the work of the Senior Leadership Team within the academy who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework;
- the financial management and self-assessment process.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on 6 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Dr Dorian Paul Lewis

Headteacher and Accounting Officer

Mr Michael Jones

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance



Bournemouth School

As accounting officer of Bournemouth School I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Governing Body are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's Funding Agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Governing Body and ESFA.

Dr Dorian Paul Lewis Accounting Officer

6 December 2022

Statement of Governors' Responsibilities

The Governors (who act as trustees of Bournemouth School and are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Charitable Company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Governors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Charitable Company will continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on 6 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr Michael Jones

Chair of the Governing Body and Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Governing Body of Bournemouth School

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Bournemouth School (the parent academy trust) for the year ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial activities, the consolidated balance sheet, the Academy trust balance sheet, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the notes to the consolidated accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and parent academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Governors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Governors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Governors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the governors annual report other than the accounts and our auditor's report thereon. Other information includes the governors' report (incorporating the strategic report and directors' report), the governance statement and the statement of regularity, propriety and compliance. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Governing Body of Bournemouth School (continued)

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Governors' report, which includes the directors' report and the strategic report prepared for the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the consolidated accounts are prepared is consistent with the consolidated accounts; and
- the strategic report and the directors' report included within the Governors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors' report, included within the trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Governors

As explained more fully in the statement of Governors' responsibilities, the Governors (who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the Governors are responsible for assessing the group and parent academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the group or parent academy trust, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Governing Body of Bournemouth School (continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the accounts due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management and those charged with governance of the academy trust.

Our approach was as follows:

- The engagement partner selected staff for the audit, led by persons who it was deemed had sufficient experience and who had the required competence and skills to be able to identify or recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations.
- We assessed the risk of irregularities as part of our audit planning, and ongoing review, including those due to fraud. Management override was identified as a significant fraud risk. This is due to the ability to bypass controls through inappropriate expenditure and accounting policies adopted.
- Completeness of income was identified as a significant risk to the audit, as grant income may not be recognised in accordance with the SORP.
- We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the
 academy and group and we considered the most significant to be Academies Accounts Direction,
 the Charity SORP, Companies Act 2006, UK financial reporting standards as issued by the
 Financial Reporting Council and UK Taxation legislation. We considered how the academy trust
 and group complies with these requirements by discussions with management and those charged
 with governance.
- We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations. Consideration was also made of the internal controls in place to mitigate the identified risks.
- We assessed the control environment, documenting the systems, controls and processes adopted. The audit approach incorporated a combination of controls where appropriate, analytical review and substantive procedures involving tests of transactions and balances. Any irregularities noted were discussed with management and additional corroborative evidence was obtained as required.
- We obtained an understanding and assessed the impact of Covid-19 on the operations of the
 Academy Trust and adapted our audit approach accordingly. We enquired and obtained evidence
 to support the going concern assumption and reviewed support received through the Coronavirus
 support schemes, dovetailed with work undertaken on management override.
- The consolidated accounts of the Group incorporate the results of the connected charities. Moore
 (South) LLP are auditors of the whole group and independent examiners to the connected
 charities and the same approach has been adopted for the connected charities.

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Governing Body of Bournemouth School (continued)

To address the risk of fraud through management override we:

- · performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
- tested journal entries to identify any unusual transactions;
- tested items of expenditure to ensure that they were valid and appropriate;
- confirmed monthly management accounts were reviewed by the board;
- assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were indicative of potential bias;
- reviewed the disclosures within the accounts to ensure they meet the requirements of the accounting standards and relevant legislation.

In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to completeness of income we:

- completed analytical work, to include comparison with prior periods;
- agreed a sample documentation to confirm that relevant entries were reflected in the accounting records and allocated to the correct period and;
- reviewed minutes of governors meetings and confirmed income sources mentioned were included correctly within the accounts.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parent academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent academy trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the parent academy trust and the parent academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Ann Mathias (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of Moore (South) LLP

in Mathias

Chartered Accountants Statutory Auditor

9 December 2022

33 The Clarendon Centre Dairy Meadow Lane Salisbury Business Park Salisbury Wiltshire SP1 2TJ

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Bournemouth School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 May 2022 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Bournemouth School during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Bournemouth School and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Bournemouth School and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Bournemouth School and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Bournemouth School's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Bournemouth School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 July 2019 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Bournemouth School and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity, propriety and compliance;
- analytical procedures on the general activities of the academy trust;
- a review of minutes of committees and board meetings which may be relevant to regularity;
- consideration of discussions with key personnel including the accounting officer and governing body;
- tests of control have been carried out on a control activity which are relevant to regularity;
- substantive testing of individual transactions.

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Moore (South) LLP

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Moore (South) LLP, Statutory Auditor

Moore (South) LLT

33 The Clarendon Centre

Dairy Meadow Lane

Salisbury Business Park

Salisbury

Wiltshire

SP12TJ

9 December 2022

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2022 (including Income and Expenditure Account)

		Unrestricted	Restricted General	Restricted Fixed		
		Funds	Funds	Asset Funds	Total	Total
	Al - 4 -		c	e	2022 £	2021
Income from:	Note	£	£	£	T.	£
Donations and capital grants	3	63,130	2,176	3,231,305	3,296,611	234,390
Charitable activities:	Ū	00,700	2,	0,20.,000	0,200,011	_0 .,000
- Funding for the Academy's						
educational operations	4	3,815	6,449,861	-	6,453,676	6,007,354
Other trading activities	5	370,383	3,687	-	374,070	153,018
Investments	6	4,083	-	-	4,083	4,734
Total income		441,411	6,455,724	3,231,305	10,128,440	6,399,496
Expenditure on: Raising funds						
Charitable activities:						
- Academy's educational operations	7,8	442,226	6,281,411	328,306	7,051,943	6,314,501
Total expenditure	7	442,226	6,281,411	328,306	7,051,943	6,314,501
Net investment (losses)/gains	13	(6,391)	-	-	(6,391)	20,831
Net income/(expenditure)		(7,206)	174,313	2,902,999	3,070,106	105,826
Transfers between funds	18	5,094	(523,248)	518,154	-	-
Other recognised (losses) / gains Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined						
benefit pension schemes	18,29		2,982,000	Best	2,982,000	(118,000)
Net movement in funds		(2,112)	2,633,065	3,421,153	6,052,106	(12,174)
Reconciliation of funds						
Total funds brought forward	18	370,884	(1,844,530)	17,296,512	15,822,866	15,835,040
Total funds carried forward	18	368,772	788,535	20,717,665	21,874,972	15,822,866

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2022

Company Number 07745881

		2022	2022	2021	2021
	Notes	£	£	£	£
Fixed assets					
Tangible assets	12		17,637,539		14,206,770
Investments	13		132,672		139,063
			17,770,211		14,345,833
Current assets					
Stock	14	-		1,791	
Debtors	15	3,701,454		3,420,876	
Cash at bank and in hand		2,599,918	_	2,540,114	
		6,301,372		5,962,781	
Liabilities					
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year	16	(961,978)		(573,360)	
Net current assets			5,339,394		5,389,421
Total assets less current liabilities		•	23,109,605	-	19,735,254
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than					
one year	17		(280,633)	_	(309,388)
Net assets excluding pension liability			22,828,972		19,425,866
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	29		(954,000)	-	(3,603,000)
Total net assets			21,874,972	_	15,822,866
Funds of the Academy Trust:					
Restricted funds					
- Fixed asset fund	18	20,717,665		17,296,512	
- General fund	18	1,742,535		1,758,470	
- Pension reserve	18	(954,000)		(3,603,000)	
Total restricted funds			21,506,200		15,451,982
Unrestricted income funds					
- General fund	18	15,450		17,575	
- School fund	18	177,062		174,327	
- Roberts Thomson fund	18	176,260		178,982	
Total unrestricted funds			368,772		370,884
Total funds			21,874,972	-	15,822,866
		,		_	

The current asset debtors figure includes an amount of £1,068,742 in respect of accrued income for our Condition Improvement Fund Heating project which will be due in more than one year.

The financial statements on pages 38 to 67 were approved by the Governors, and authorised for issue on 6 December 2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

Mr Michael Jones

Chair

Academy Balance Sheet as at	31 Aug	gust 2022	Company l	Number 07745	381
		2022	2022	2021	2021
	Notes	£	£	£	£
Fixed assets					
Tangible assets	12		17,637,539	l-	14,206,770
Current assets					
Stock	14	-		1,791	
Debtors	15	3,690,717		3,410,252	
Cash at bank and in hand		2,387,357	_	2,334,536	
		6,078,074		5,746,579	
Liabilities					
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year	16	(959,330)		(571,404)	
Net current assets			5,118,744		5,175,175
Total assets less current liabilities		-	22,756,283	•	19,381,945
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than					
one year	17	-	(280,633)		(309,388)
Net assets excluding pension liability			22,475,650		19,072,557
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	29	-	(954,000)		(3,603,000)
Total net assets		-	21,521,650		15,469,557
Funds of the Academy Trust:					
Restricted funds					
 Fixed asset fund 	18	20,717,665		17,296,512	
- General fund	18	1,742,535		1,758,470	
- Pension reserve	18	(954,000)	_	(3,603,000)	
Total restricted funds			21,506,200		15,451,982
Unrestricted income funds					
- General fund	18	15,450		17,575	
Total unrestricted funds			15,450		17,575

The current asset debtors figure includes an amount of £1,068,742 in respect of accrued income for our Condition Improvement Fund Heating project which will be due in more than one year.

21,521,650

15,469,557

The financial statements on pages 38 to 67 were approved by the Governors, and authorised for issue on 6 December 2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

Mr Michael Jones

Total funds

Chair

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2022

		2022 £	2021 £
	Notes		
Cash flows from operating activities			
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	22	584,935	1,028,860
Cash flows from investing activities	23	(523,687)	(256,557)
Cash flows from financing activities	24	(1,444)	(722)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting year		59,804	771,581
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2021		2,540,114	1,768,533
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022	25	2,599,918	2,540,114

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation and Consolidation

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (Charities SORP (FRS102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Bournemouth School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The Statement of Financial Activities (SoFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the financial statements of the Charity and of its connected charities, Bournemouth School Fund and Roberts Thomson and Other Scholarships Foundation, over which it has overall control. The results of the connected charities are consolidated on a line by line basis. No separate SoFA has been presented for the Charity alone as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements comprising the consolidated Statement of Financial Activities, the consolidated and Charity Balance Sheet, consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 30 constitute the consolidated financial statements of Bournemouth School for the financial year ended 31 August 2022.

Going Concern

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The pupil numbers at the academy have increased in 2022/23 following a planned increase in PAN in 2019/20. Applications to the school for entrance continue to be high therefore it is assumed that pupil numbers will remain constant for the foreseeable future. The reserve levels held by the academy trust remain at a level considered to be acceptable by the governors for the continued operations of the academy. Investment is being made in the academy through CIF and SSEF grants to improve the quality of the infrastructure and provide accommodation for the future planned increase in pupil numbers. The governors do not therefore believe that there are any material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Grants received for capital purposes are spent on capital projects in line with the terms and conditions for the grant.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the Academy has provided the goods or services.

· Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and 'Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities' and the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.

· Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis on time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operation, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% straight line ICT equipment 25% straight line Furniture & Equipment 10% straight line Motor Vehicles 25% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

Where an asset comprises of two or more components which have substantially different lives e.g. roof, boilers, lifts, each component is depreciated separately over its useful economic life.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probably that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which it is probably will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The Academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets – trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank – is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities – trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to a charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Taxation

The Academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Pensions Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education Group.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pension liability at 31 August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

The governors have considered the accounting treatment of land and buildings utilised by the Academy Trust. The land and buildings were valued on the depreciated replacement cost method in an exercise undertaken by the Education and Skills Funding Agency as at 31 August 2011. Within freehold land and buildings is land valued at £2,179,163 and buildings valued at £11,852,369. A separate valuation has not been obtained as the governors deemed it to be not an effective use of public funds. The valuations entail an element of judgement and the governors believe that the method of valuation is appropriate and in line with acceptable valuation methods.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

2. Prior Year Consolidated SoFA for year ended 31 August 2021

		Unrestricted Funds	Restricted General Funds	Restricted Fixed Asset Funds	Total 2021
	Note	£	£	£	£
Income from:					
Donations and capital grants Charitable activities: Funding for the Academy's	3	61,894	3,781	168,715	234,390
educational operations	4	_	6,007,354	_	6,007,354
Other trading activities	5	146,848	6,170	_	153,018
Investments	6	4,734	-	-	4,734
Total income		213,476	6,017,305	168,715	6,399,496
Expenditure on: Raising funds Charitable activities: - Academy's educational operations	7,8	267,221	5,726,150	321,130	6,314,501
Total expenditure	7	267,221	5,726,150	321,130	6,314,501
Net investment gains	13	20,831	-	-	20,831
Net income/(expenditure)		(32,914)	291,155	(152,415)	105,826
Transfers between funds	18	33,373	(33,373)	-	-
Other recognised (losses) / gains Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes	18,29	_	(118,000)	_	(118,000)
Net movement in funds		459	139,782	(152,415)	(12,174)
Reconciliation of funds					
Total funds brought forward	18	370,425	(1,984,312)	17,448,927	15,835,040
Total funds carried forward	18	370,884	(1,844,530)	17,296,512	15,822,866

3. Donations and capital grants

	Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted Funds £	Total 2022 £	Total 2021 £
Capital Grants	-	3,231,305	3,231,305	168,715
Capital Donations	-	_	-	3,781
Other Donations	63,130	2,176	65,306	61,894
	63,130	3,233,481	3,296,611	234,390

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

4. Funding for the Academy's educational operations

	Unrestricted Funds	Restricted Funds	Total 2022	Total 2021
	£	£	£	£
DfE/ESFA revenue grants				
General Annual Grant (GAG)	-1	6,018,702	6,018,702	5,345,737
Other DfE / ESFA grants			·	
- 16-19 Bursary		12,339	12,339	16,934
- Pupil Premium	-1	58,773	58,773	61,789
- Rates Reclaim	-	38,144	38,144	38,143
- Teachers Pay Grant	-1	23,373	23,373	76,356
- Teachers Pensions Grant	-	66,045	66,045	215,763
Other DfE Group Grants	3,815	66,775	70,590	6,000
v	3,815	6,284,151	6,287,966	5,760,722
Other Government grants				
- SEN from LA	-	17,886	17,886	15,912
- Growth Funding from LA	-	114,726	114,726	120,540
- Other LA Grants	-	7,938	7,938	-
,=	-	140,550	140,550	136,452
COVID-19 Additional Funding (DfE/ESFA)				
- Catch-up Premium	_	_	_	65,600
- Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding	-	10,920	10,920	34,705
3.	-	10,920	10,920	100,305
COVID-19 Additional Funding				
(non DfE/ESFA)	=	12,040	12,040	_
,	-	12,040	12,040	
Other income for the Academy's				
educational operations		2,200	2,200	9,875
		2,200	2,200	9,875
-	3,815	6,449,861	6,453,676	6,007,354

The academy received £65,600 of funding for catch-up premium in 2020/21 which was spent in 2021/22.

5. Other trading activities

		Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted Funds £	Total 20 22 £	Total 2021 £
	Other Income	8,802	1,781	10,583	16,514
	Parental Contributions	30,815	765	31,580	1,867
	Catering Income	217,473	-	217,473	90,173
	Exam fee Income	1,786	_	1,786	945
	Visit and trip income	603	1,141	1,744	15,470
	After School Activities Income	110,904	-	110,904	28,049
		370,383	3,687	374,070	153,018
6.	Investment Income				
		Unrestricted	Restricted	Total	Total

	Funds £	Funds £	2022 £	2021 £
Dividend Income	3,728	-	3,728	3,609
Bank Interest Received	355		355	1,125
	4,083		4,083	4,734

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

7. Expenditure

Expenditare			424		
	Ctoff	Non Pay E	xpenditure Other	Total	Total
	Staff Costs	Premises	Costs	2022	2021
	£	£	£	£	£
Academy's educational	4	~	~	~	~
operations					
- Direct costs	4,668,380	328,306	396,027	5,392,713	4,953,113
- Allocated support costs	770,063	276,603	612,564	1,659,230	1,361,388
	5,438,443	604,909	1,008,591	7,051,943	6,314,501
Net income/(expenditure) for	or the vear includ	le:		2022	2021
N - N				£	£
Operating lease rentals				11,552	14,496
Depreciation				328,044	320,628
Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixe	ed assets			(262)	(502)
Fees payable to auditor					
- audit				9,475	8,950
 other services Moore South 	LLP			2,168	2,106
 other services Kreston Reev 	/es			3,450	1,100

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

8. Charitable Activities

Charitable Activities				
	Unrestricted	Restricted	Total	Total
	Funds	Funds	2022	2021
	£	£	£	£
Direct costs – educational				
operations				
Teaching and educational				
support staff costs	48,621	4,621,199	4,669,820	4,332,237
Other direct staff costs &				
expenses	-	21,005	21,005	17,435
Depreciation	-	328,044	328,044	320,628
Educational supplies	14,149	96,362	110,511	76,356
Examination fees	1,730	112,621	114,351	88,860
Educational consultancy	-	3,985	3,985	11,151
Technology costs	-	39,341	39,341	36,541
Other direct costs	85,997	19,659	105,656	69,905
	150,497	5,242,216	5,392,713	4,953,113
Support costs – educational				
operations				
Support staff pay costs	_	975,990	975,990	823,783
Catering staff pay costs	127,073	-	127,073	122,863
Other support staff costs	143	5,874	6,017	4,206
Maintenance of premises and	110	0,011	0,017	1,200
equipment	465	43,355	43,820	41,225
Cleaning		2,880	2,880	2,144
Operating lease rentals	ş <u>_</u>	11,552	11,552	14,495
Rent & rates	_	55,290	55,290	54,895
Energy	_	95,072	95,072	60,262
RPA		21,793	21,793	19,476
Security and transport	593	11,552	12,145	11,132
Catering	159,390		159,390	64,636
Technology costs	-	50,553	50,553	46,723
Other premises costs	-	50,102	50,102	55,207
Legal costs - other	-		,	-
Other professional costs	-	11,168	11,168	10,774
Governance costs	810	14,752	15,562	12,625
Other support costs	3,255	17,568	20,823	16,942
• •	291,729	1,367,501	1,659,230	1,361,388
Total charitable activity costs	442,226	6,609,717	7,051,943	6,314,501

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

9. Staff

a. Staff costs		
	2022	2021
	£	£
Staff costs during the period were:		
Wages and salaries	4,059,944	3,760,730
Social security costs	427,023	381,145
Pension costs	1,237,085	1,086,626
	5,724,052	5,228,501
Agency staff costs	48,831	42,620
Staff restructuring costs		7,762
	5,772,883	5,278,883
Staff restructuring costs comprise:		
Severance payments (Statutory/contractual payments)	-	7,762
		7,762

Off payroll payments are now being included in the above figures.

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year were as follows:

	2022	2021
Charitable Activities	No	No
Teachers	79	71
Administration and support	53	50
Management	6	5
	138	126

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year expressed as full time equivalents were as follows:

	2022	2021
Charitable Activities	No	No
Teachers	67	64
Administration and support	32	32
Management	6	5
·	105	101

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

	2022	2021
	No	No
£60,001 - £70,000	3	2
£70,001 - £80,000	1	1
£90,001 - £100,000	11	1

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

9. Staff (continued)

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the governors and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £686,520 (2021: £609,309).

10. Related Party Transactions - Governors' Remuneration and Expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the Academy. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

D Lewis (Headteacher and Governor): Remuneration £95,001 - £100,000 (2021: £95,001 - £100,000) Employer's pension contributions £20,001 - £25,000 (2021; £20,001 - £25,000) M Gosling (Other Staff Governor): Remuneration £40,001 - £45,000 (2021: £40,001 - £45,000) Employer's pension contributions £10,001 - £15,000 (2021: £5,001 - £10,000) C Lloyd-Hopkins (Other Staff Governor) Remuneration £10,001 - £15,000 (2021: £10,001 - £15,000) Employer's pension contributions £0 - £5,000 (2021: £0 - £5,000) J Roche (Other Staff Governor): Remuneration £35,001 - £40,000 (2021: £30,001 - £35,000)

During the year ended 31 August 2022, reimbursement of expenses incurred by staff Governors through employment at the school were as follows:

£5,001 - £10,000 (2021: £5,001 - £10,000)

D Lewis £85 (2021: £nil) C Lloyd-Hopkins £191 (2021: £171)

Employer's pension contributions

During the year ended 31 August 2022, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £nil were reimbursed or paid directly to Governors (2021: £nil). Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in Note 30.

11. Governors' and Officers' Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased cover via the ESFA Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA) to protect governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The RPA provides cover up to £10,000,000 (2021: £10,000,000) on any one claim. The cost of this cover is not separately identifiable (2021: not separately identifiable).

The cost of this cover is included in the RPA cost.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

12. Tangible Fixed Assets

Freehold Assets Under Furniture Computer M Land and Construction and Equipment Vehi Buildings Equipment	otor cles	Total
£ £ £ £	£	£
Cost		
At 1 September 2021 15,926,049 672,886 54,383 234,161 33	,595	16,921,074
Additions 163,516 3,532,795 6,053 56,711	-	3,759,075
Transfer 7,501 (7,501)	-	-
Disposals (9,950)	-	(9,950)
At 31 August 2022 16,097,066 4,198,180 60,436 280,922 33	,595	20,670,199
Depreciation		
•	,595	2,714,304
Charged in year 279,168 - 6,044 42,832	-	328,044
Disposals (9,688)	-	(9,688)
At 31 August 2022 2,773,895 - 25,390 199,780 33	,595	3,032,660
Net book values		
At 31 August 2022 13,323,171 4,198,180 35,046 81,142	-	17,637,539
At 31 August 2021 13,431,322 672,886 35,037 67,525		14,206,770

The additions to freehold land and buildings comprise the following items:

- School perimeter fencing

- Sport centre fencing

- New entrance and door system to school

- White wall cladding in music corridor

- Entrance ramp at front of main building

The assets under the course of construction comprise the following items:

- Costs incurred to date in respect of the schools new building to accommodate the increase in pupil numbers
- Costs incurred to date in respect of heating improvements

13. Fixed Asset Investments

	Group		
	2022	2021	
Market value	£	£	
At 1 September 2021	139,063	118,232	
Donations in year	15.	_	
Change in value in the year	(6,391)	20,831	
	132,672	139,063	

The historic cost of the investments is not disclosed as it is unknown. When the investment accounts were transferred from the Charity Commission in 1992 no historic cost information was provided.

The investments held by the group are COIF Income Shares.

14. Stock

	Grou	ир	Academy	
	2022	2021	2022	2021
	£	£	£	£
Laptops from ESFA	<u>-</u>	1,791	_	1,791
		1,791	-	1,791

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

15. Debtors

	Grou	лb	Academy		
	2022 2021		2022	2021	
	£	£	£	£	
Trade debtors	2,259	15,335	2,259	15,335	
VAT recoverable	117,150	82,443	117,150	82,443	
Other debtors	10,737	10,624	-	-	
Prepayments and accrued income	3,571,308	3,312,474	3,571,308	3,312,474	
	3,701,454	3,420,876	3,690,717	3,410,252	

Included within prepayments and accrued income is £1,068,742 (2021: £179,068) in respect of accrued income for our Condition Improvement Funded Heating Project (2021: Selective School Expansion Fund Project) which will be due in more than one year.

16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

•			
Gro	up	Aca	idemy
2022	2021	2022	2021
£	£	£	£
102,379	420,147	102,149	420,147
104,541	_	104,541	_
28,755	1,444	28,755	1,444
104,849	_	104,849	-
621,454	151,769	619,036	149,813
961,978	573,360	959,330	571,404
200			
2022	2021	2022	2021
£	£	£	£
93,888	152,038	91,333	114,093
120,763	93,888	118,344	91,333
(93,888)	(152,038)	(91,333)	(114,093)
120,763	93,888	118,344	91,333
	Gro 2022 £ 102,379 104,541 28,755 104,849 621,454 961,978 2022 £ 93,888 120,763 (93,888)	Group 2022 2021 £ 102,379 420,147 104,541 - 28,755 1,444 104,849 621,454 151,769 961,978 573,360 2022 2021 £ 93,888 152,038 120,763 93,888 (93,888) (152,038)	2022 2021 2022 £ £ £ 102,379 420,147 102,149 104,541 - 104,541 28,755 1,444 28,755 104,849 - 104,849 621,454 151,769 619,036 961,978 573,360 959,330 2022 £ £ 93,888 152,038 91,333 120,763 93,888 118,344 (93,888) (152,038) (91,333)

Deferred income relates to income which was received in the period to 31 August 2022 but actually relates to the year ended 31 August 2023.

Deferred income as at 31 August 2022 relates to rates relief, income from after school activities, 6th form resources fee, exam remarks, lockers, music lessons, photocopying and lunch top-ups income received in advance.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

17. Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

	Group	Academy		
	2022	2022 2021		2021
	£	£	£	£
Loans	280,633	309,388	280,633	309,388
	280,633	309,388	280,633	309,388

Loans are made up of the following:

A loan of £300,000 (£27,311 in creditors: amounts falling due within one year, £272,689 in creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year) from the ESFA under Selective School Expansion Fund with an interest rate of 2.07%. The loan is repayable over 120 monthly repayments. Repayments were originally due to commence in September 2020. Due to project delays repayments are not expected to commence until January 2023. £157,677 of the loan is due for repayment in more than 5 years.

A loan of £9,388 (£1,444 in creditors: amounts falling due within one year, £7,944 in creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year) from Salix under the Condition Improvement Fund with an interest rate of 0%. The loan is repayable over 8 years with repayments being made six monthly commencing March 2021. £2,166 of the loan is due for repayment in more than 5 years.

18. Funds

G	ro	u	b

Group	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Incoming Resources £	Resources Expended £	Gains, Losses and Transfers £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Restricted general funds	4 000 700	0.040.700	(5.440.440)	(500.040)	4 720 000
General Annual Grant (GAG)	1,689,768	6,018,702	(5,446,413)	(523,248)	1,738,809
Pupil Premium Fund	0.400	58,773	(58,773)	-	2 726
16-19 Bursary	3,102	12,339	(11,715)	-	3,726
Other DfE/ESFA Grants	00.000	198,152	(198,152)	-	-
Catch-up Premium	65,600	-	(65,600)	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19		10.000	/40.000)		
funding	-	10,920 142,590	(10,920)	-	-
Other Government Grants	-	4,248	(152,590) (4,248)	_	_
Other Income Pension reserve	(3,603,000)	4,240	(333,000)	2,982,000	(954,000)
rension reserve	(1,844,530)	6,455,724	(6,281,411)	2,458,752	788,535
	(1,044,000)	0,433,724	(0,201,411)	2,400,702	700,000
Restricted fixed asset funds			(00 (00)		
DfE Group capital grants	5,375,601	3,231,305	(62,138)	-	8,544,768
Voluntary Income	97,606	-	(8,671)	-	88,935
Donated assets	11,654,239	-	(237,047)	540.454	11,417,192
Capital expenditure from GAG	169,066		(20,450)	518,154	666,770
	17,296,512	3,231,305	(328,306)	518,154	20,717,665
Total restricted funds	15,451,982	9,687,029	(6,609,717)	2,976,906	21,506,200
Unrestricted funds					
Unrestricted general funds	17,575	373,642	(380,861)	5,094	15,450
School Fund	174,327	64,037	(61,302)	-	177,062
Roberts Thomson	178,982	3,732	(63)	(6,391)	176,260
Total unrestricted funds	370,884	441,411	(442,226)	(1,297)	368,772
Total funds	15,822,866	10,128,440	(7,051,943)	2,975,609	21,874,972

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

18. Funds (continued)

Academy

	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Incoming Resources £	Resources Expended £	Gains, Losses and Transfers £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Restricted general funds					
General Annual Grant (GAG)	1,689,768	6,018,702	(5,415,981)	(553,680)	1,738,809
Pupil Premium Fund	-	58,773	(58,773)	_	-
16-19 Bursary	3,102	12,339	(11,715)	_	3,726
Other DfE/ESFA Grants	-	198,152	(198, 152)	-	-
Catch-up Premium	65,600	-	(65,600)	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19					
funding	-	10,920	(10,920)	-	m
Other Government Grants	-	152,590	(152,590)	_	-
Other Income	-	34,680	(34,680)	-	-
Pension reserve	(3,603,000)	_	(333,000)	2,982,000	(954,000)
	(1,844,530)	6,486,156	(6,281,411)	2,428,320	788,535
Restricted fixed asset funds					
DfE Group capital grants	5,375,601	3,231,305	(62,138)	-	8,544,768
Voluntary Income	97,606	-	(8,671)	-	88,935
Donated assets	11,654,239	_	(237,047)	_	11,417,192
Capital expenditure from GAG	169,066	_	(20,450)	518,154	666,770
	17,296,512	3,231,305	(328,306)	518,154	20,717,665
Total restricted funds	15,451,982	9,717,461	(6,609,717)	2,946,474	21,506,200
Unrestricted funds					
Unrestricted general funds	17,575	393,210	(430,861)	35,526	15,450
Total unrestricted funds	17,575	393,210	(430,861)	35,526	15,450
Total funds	15,469,557	10,110,671	(7,040,578)	2,982,000	21,521,650

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds are those which are for a specific purpose and the funds are only spent in accordance with the agreement or restriction placed upon them. The restricted general funds are made up of the General Annual Grant received, to be spent on education within the academy, and other related DfE and other authority grants. During 2021/22 a transfer was made from restricted funds to unrestricted funds of £29,196 in respect of the cost of free school meals and catering equipment purchased as part of the Selective Schools Expansion Fund.

The fixed asset fund was created with the donation of the school's land and buildings to the academy. Additional assets are added to the fund which is also written down by depreciation each year.

In the current year capital grants of £3,231,305 were accounted for as receivable. £25,080 is the devolved formula capital grant received from the ESFA. £3,206,225 is a condition improvement fund grant for improving heating.

Unrestricted general funds are general donations and fund raising activities of the academy and are used to support the provision of education within the academy.

The School Fund exists for advancing the education of pupils by providing and assisting in the provision of facilities for the education of pupils at Bournemouth School.

The Roberts Thomson fund exists to provide current and past pupils of Bournemouth School assistance with their further education or profession with a bias towards sports and the arts.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022.

The transfer of funds from restricted to unrestricted funds represents pupil premium funds being used for school trips and funding of free school meals.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

18. Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Group	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Incoming Resources £	Resources Expended £	Gains, Losses and Transfers £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
Restricted general funds	4 222 500	E 04E 707	(A DEC 4CE)	(22.272)	1,689,768
General Annual Grant (GAG)	1,233,569	5,345,737	(4,856,165) (61,789)	(33,373)	1,005,700
Pupil Premium Fund	7,119	61,789 16,934	(20,951)	-	3,102
16-19 Bursary Other DfE/ESFA Grants	7,119	336,262	(336,262)	-	3,102
Catch-up Premium	-	65,600	(330,202)	_	65,600
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19	_	05,000	_	_	03,000
funding	_	34,705	(34,705)	_	
Other Government Grants	_	136,452	(136,452)	_	_
Other Income	_	19,826	(19,826)	-	_
Pension reserve	(3,225,000)	-	(260,000)	(118,000)	(3,603,000)
, sheldi ressire	(1,984,312)	6,017,305	(5,726,150)	(151,373)	(1,844,530)
Restricted fixed asset funds	1-3		(=,:=,=,:==,	<u> </u>	
DfE Group capital grants	5,269,751	154,838	(48,988)		5,375,601
Voluntary Income	92,248	13,877	(8,519)	_	97,606
Donated assets	11,891,286	15,077	(237,047)	_	11,654,239
Capital expenditure from GAG	195,642		(26,576)	_	169,066
Capital expellature from GAG	17,448,927	168,715	(321,130)		17,296,512
Total as atalata difessala			*	(454.272)	
Total restricted funds	15,464,615	6,186,020	(6,047,280)	(151,373)	15,451,982
Unrestricted funds					
Unrestricted general funds	44,392	137,620	(197,810)	33,373	17,575
School Fund	171,495	72,243	(69,411)	-	174,327
Roberts Thomson	154,538	3,613		20,831	178,982
Total unrestricted funds	370,425	213,476	(267,221)	54,204	370,884
Total funds	15,835,040	6,399,496	(6,314,501)	(97,169)	15,822,866

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

18. Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows (continued):

Academy	Balance at 1 September 2020 £	Incoming Resources £	Resources Expended £	Gains, Losses and Transfers £	Balance at 31 August 2021 £
Restricted general funds					
General Annual Grant (GAG)	1,233,569	5,345,737	(4,807,986)	(81,552)	1,689,768
Pupil Premium Fund	-	61,789	(61,789)	-	-
16-19 Bursary	7,119	16,934	(20,951)	-	3,102
Other DfE/ESFA Grants	-	336,262	(336,262)	-	-
Catch-up Premium	-	65,600	-	-	65,600
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19					
funding	-	34,705	(34,705)	-	-
Other Government Grants	-	136,452	(136,452)	-	=
Other Income		68,005	(68,005)	_	-
Pension reserve	(3,225,000)	-	(260,000)	(118,000)	(3,603,000)
	(1,984,312)	6,065,484	(5,726,150)	(199,552)	(1,844,530)
Restricted fixed asset funds	× a. F				
DfE Group capital grants	5,269,751	154,838	(48,988)	_	5,375,601
Voluntary Income	92,248	13,877	(8,519)	I-	97,606
Donated assets	11,891,286	-	(237,047)	_	11,654,239
Capital expenditure from GAG	195,642	_	(26,576)	-	169,066
	17,448,927	168,715	(321,130)		17,296,512
Total restricted funds	15,464,615	6,234,199	(6,047,280)	(199,552)	15,451,982
Unrestricted funds					
Unrestricted general funds	44,392	139,441	(247,810)	81,552	17,575
Total unrestricted funds	44,392	139,441	(247,810)	81,552	17,575
Total funds	15,509,007	6,373,640	(6,295,090)	(118,000)	15,469,557

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

19. Analysis of net assets between funds

Group

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by:

	Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted General Funds £	Restricted Fixed Asset Funds £	Total Funds £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	17,637,539	17,637,539
Fixed asset investments	132,672	-	-	132,672
Current assets	327,498	2,584,360	3,389,514	6,301,372
Current liabilities	(91,398)	(841,825)	(28,755)	(961,978)
Non-current liabilities	-	-	(280,633)	(280,633)
Pension scheme liability	-	(954,000)	-	(954,000)
Total net assets	368,772	788,535	20,717,665	21,874,972

Academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by:

•	Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted General Funds £	Restricted Fixed Asset Funds £	Total Funds £
Tangible fixed assets	_	-	17,637,539	17,637,539
Current assets	104,200	2,584,360	3,389,514	6,078,074
Current liabilities	(88,750)	(841,825)	(28,755)	(959, 330)
Non-current liabilities	_	-	(280,633)	(280,633)
Pension scheme liability	-	(954,000)	-	(954,000)
Total net assets	15,450	788,535	20,717,665	21,521,650

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

19. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Group

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

	Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted General Funds £	Restricted Fixed Asset Funds £	Total Funds £
Tangible fixed assets	_	_	14,206,770	14,206,770
Fixed asset investments	139,063	_	-	139,063
Current assets	302,890	2,259,317	3,400,574	5,962,781
Current liabilities	(71,069)	(500,847)	(1,444)	(573,360)
Non-current liabilities	_	_	(309,388)	(309,388)
Pension scheme liability	-	(3,603,000)	-	(3,603,000)
Total net assets	370,884	(1,844,530)	17,296,512	15,822,866

Academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

	Unrestricted Funds £	Restricted General Funds £	Restricted Fixed Asset Funds £	Total Funds £
Tangible fixed assets	-1	-	14,206,770	14,206,770
Current assets	86,688	2,259,317	3,400,574	5,746,579
Current liabilities	(69,113)	(500,847)	(1,444)	(571,404)
Non-current liabilities	-	-	(309,388)	(309,388)
Pension scheme liability		(3,603,000)	-	(3,603,000)
Total net assets	17,575	(1,844,530)	17,296,512	15,469,557

20. Capital commitments

	2022	2021
	£	£
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements	1,199,804	4,300,825

This figure represents amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in respect of the ongoing new building works (Selective School Expansion Fund), safeguarding improvements (Condition Improvement Funding) and heating improvements (Condition Improvement Funding).

21. Commitments under operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was:

	2022	2021
Other	£	£
Amounts due within one year	10,592	3,624
Amounts due between one and five years	23,833	-
	34,425	3,624

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

22. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

	, . , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	2022 £	2021 £
	Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial activities) Adjusted for:	3,070,106	105,826
	Depreciation (Note 12)	328,044	320,628
	Loss on disposal of fixed assets	262	502
	Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(3,231,305)	(168,715)
	Dividend income (Note 6)	(3,728)	(3,609)
	Interest receivable (Note 6)	(355)	(1,125)
	Net (losses)/gains on investments	6,391	(20,831)
	Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (Note 29)	273,000	208,000
	Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (Note 29)	60,000	52,000
	Decrease/(Increase) in stocks	1,791	(1,791)
	(Increase)/Decrease in debtors	(280,578)	482,374
	Increase in creditors	361,307	55,601
	Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities	584,935	1,028,860
23.	Cash flows from investing activities		
		2022	2021
		£	£
	Dividends and Interest from investments	4,083	4,734
	Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets	(0.000.000)	- (400.000)
	Purchase of tangible fixed assets	(3,759,075)	(430,006)
	Capital grants from Dfe/ESFA	3,231,305	154,838
	Capital funding received from sponsors and others	-	13,877
	Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities	(523,687)	(256,557)
24.	Cashflows from financing activities		
		2022	2021
		£	£
	Repayments of borrowing	(1,444)	(722)
	Cash inflows from new borrowing	-	-
	Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities	(1,444)	(722)
25.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents		
		2022	2021
		£	£
	Cash in hand and at bank	2,599,918	2,540,114
	Total cash and cash equivalents	2,599,918	2,540,114
	_		

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

26. Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash 2,540,114 59,804 2,599,918 Cash Equivalents Overdraft facility repayable on demand 2,540,114 59,804 2,599,918 Loans falling due within one year Loans falling due after more than one year Finance lease obligations 2,229,282 61,248 2,290,530		At 1 September 2021	Cash flows	Acquisition/ disposal of subsidiaries	New finance leases	Other non- cash changes	At 31 August 2022
Cash Equivalents			£	£	£	£	£
Overdraft facility repayable on demand 2,540,114 59,804 2,599,918 Loans falling due within one year Loans falling due after more than one year Finance lease obligations		2,540,114	59,804	=	-	_	2,599,918
repayable on demand 2,540,114 59,804 2,599,918 Loans falling due within one year Loans falling due after more than one year Finance lease obligations		-	_	=	-	_	-
Loans falling due (1,444) (27,311) (28,755) within one year Loans falling due (309,388) 28,755 (280,633) after more than one year Finance lease obligations	repayable on	-	-	-	-	-	-
within one year Loans falling due (309,388) 28,755 (280,633) after more than one year Finance lease		2,540,114	59,804	-	_	-	2,599,918
after more than one year Finance lease obligations		(1,444)	(27,311)	-	-	-	(28,755)
obligations	after more than one year	(309,388)	28,755	-	-	-	(280,633)
2,229,282 61,248 2,290,530		-	-	-	-1	-	-
		2,229,282	61,248				2,290,530

27. Contingent Liabilities

The Academy had no contingent liabilities as at 31 August 2022.

28. Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 as stated in the memorandum and articles of association for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

29. Pension and similar obligations

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Dorset Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £104,385 (2021: £nil) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2014). Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

Pension and similar obligations (continued) 29.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuation and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the latest valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- Employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy).
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million.
- The SCAPE rate set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs payable to TPS in the period amounted to £736,393 (2021: £682,434).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pension website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trusteeadministered funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £210,000 (2021: £187,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £163,000 (2021: £144,000) and employees' contributions totalled £47,000 (2021: £43,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years for employers are 22% Apr 22 to Mar 23 and 23.6% Apr 2023 to Mar 2026 and ranges from 5.5-8.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to guarantee that, in the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	2022	2021
Rate of increase in salaries	3.95%	3.9%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation	2.95%	2.9%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities	4.25%	1.65%
Inflation assumption (CPI)	2.95%	2.9%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums	50%	50%

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

29. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Total market value of assets

The sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities, showing how the measurement of scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in the relevant assumption that were reasonably possible at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Sensitivity Analysis	£000	£000	£000
Adjustment to discount rate Present value of total obligation Projected service cost	+0.1%	0.0%	-0.1%
	3,616	3,697	3,780
	174	180	186
Adjustment to long term salary increase Present value of total obligation Projected service cost	+0.1%	0.0%	-0.1%
	3,706	3,697	3,687
	180	180	180
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation	+0.1%	0.0%	-0.1%
Present value of total obligation	3,771	3,697	3,624
Projected service cost	186	180	174
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions Present value of total obligation Projected service cost	+ 1 Year	None	- 1 Year
	3,812	3,697	3,585
	187	180	173

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2022	2021
Retiring today		
Males	22.1	23.1
Females	24.2	24.6
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	23.4	24.4
Females	25.6	26.1
The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:		
	Fair Value	Fair Value
	at	at
	31 August	31 August
	2022	2021
	£	£
Equities	1,480,000	1,491,000
Liability Driven Investment	300,000	321,000
Cash	42,000	43,000
Other Bonds	126,000	151,000
Diversified Growth Fund	183,000	180,000
Property	283,000	238,000
Infrastructure	205,000	168,000
Multi Asset Credit	124,000	128,000

The return on the Fund (on a bid value to bid value basis) for the year to 31 August 2022 is estimated to be -4.14%. The actual return on Fund assets over the year may be different (2021: £467,000).

2,743,000

2,720,000

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

29. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

	2022	2021
	£	£
Current service cost (net of employee contributions)	(436,000)	(352,000)
Interest income	46,000	35,000
Interest cost	(104,000)	(85,000)
Administrative expenses	(2,000)	(2,000)
Total amount recognised in the SOFA	(496,000)	(404,000)

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

	2022	2021
	£	£
At 1 September	6,323,000	5,351,000
Current service cost	436,000	352,000
Interest cost	104,000	85,000
Employee contributions	47,000	43,000
Changes in financial assumptions	(2,935,000)	707,000
Change in demographic assumptions	(217,000)	(66,000)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation	9,000	(91,000)
Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in	(68,000)	(56,000)
Unfunded pension payments	(2,000)	(2,000)
At 31 August	3,697,000	6,323,000

29. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets:

	2022	2021
	£	£
At 1 September	2,720,000	2,126,000
Interest on assets	46,000	35,000
Return on assets less interest	(161,000)	432,000
Administrative expenses	(2,000)	(2,000)
Employer contributions	163,000	144,000
Employee contributions	47,000	43,000
Benefits paid	(70,000)_	(58,000)
At 31 August	2,743,000	2,720,000

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

30. Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Expenditure Related Party Transactions

During the year the Academy contributed £17,146 (2021: £16,751) to Bournemouth School Charitable Trust, of which Dr D Lewis, a governor and headteacher, is a trustee.

During the year related parties of two of the governors were employed within the school.

Mrs D Lewis, the wife of Dr D Lewis, a governor and headteacher, was employed as an invigilator at the school during the year.

Mr R Lloyd-Hopkins, the father of Mrs C Lloyd-Hopkins, a governor, was employed as a cleaner at the school during the year.

All the above appointments were made in open competition and none of related governors were involved in the decision making process regarding appointment. All the above employees are paid within the normal pay scale for their roles and they receive no special treatment as a result of their relationship with a governor.

Income Related Party Transactions

During the year four governors donated amounts to Bournemouth School Fund which is consolidated into these accounts. These donations were made as a parent in the normal course of operations.

Dr J Bray, £120 (2021: £120) Mr M Jones, £120 (2021: £120) Ms K Turton, £165 (2021: £180) Dr M Vassallo £180 (2021: £180)

Mrs D Watts £nil (2021: £45) (resigned as a governor 7th December 2020)

No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain Governors' remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.



Document Sent Tue, 13 Dec 2022 14:12:05 GMT Document Activity History Document history shows most recent activity first

Activity

Document Activity Report

Date

You can verify that this is a genuine Portal document by uploading it to the following secure web page: